# CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD



# **MINUTES**

CABINET MEETING: 19 MAY 2016

Cabinet Members Present: Councillor Phil Bale (Chair)

Councillor Sue Lent
Councillor Peter Bradbury
Councillor Dan De'Ath
Councillor Bob Derbyshire
Councillor Graham Hinchey
Councillor Susan Elsmore
Councillor Sarah Merry
Councillor Ramesh Patel

Observers: Councillor Lyn Hudson

Councillor Judith Woodman

Officers: Paul Orders, Chief Executive

Christine Salter, Section 151 Officer David Marr, Interim Monitoring Officer

Claire Deguara, Cabinet Office

Apologies: Councillor Dianne Rees

# 121 MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETINGS HELD ON 10 AND 21 MARCH 2016

# 122 CARDIFF BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Cabinet received a report regarding the development of a Business Improvement District in Cardiff. A Business Improvement District is a legally and geographically defined partnership for area improvement and service delivery, funded by levy-paying businesses within that agreed boundary. It is managed and operated by a BID Company – a non-profit company run by and for its members.

The report set out the position on the vote with regard to the City of Cardiff Council's hereditaments in the city centre and details a new approach to City Centre Management related functions.

# **RESOLVED**: that

 the receipt of relevant information relating to the proposed Cardiff Business Improvement District including a summary business plan and boundary be noted.

- b) authority be delegated to the Director of Economic Development to exercise the Council's vote in support of the proposed BID Ballot in respect of the hereditaments in the Council's ownership within the BID area subject to any detailed clarification of the information received being satisfactory and subject to no material change in the Summary Business Plan..
- c) authority be delegated to the Director of Economic Development, in consultation with the Leader of the Council, the Chief Executive, the Section 151 Officer and the Monitoring Officer to conclude a Service Level Agreement with relation to City Centre Management and to any agreement would be brought to Cabinet for approval.
- d) the proposal to exempt BID levy paying members from Late Night Levy (should the Council choose to introduce it in the future) be noted on the basis that the Business Improvement District will allocate a sum equal to or greater than the figure that would be collected from the imposition of a Late Night Levy.
- e) authority be delegated to the Section 151 Officer in consultation with the Leader of the Council, the Chief Executive, the Director of Economic Development and the Monitoring Officer to negotiate an advance to the BID company should the ballot be successful, and on the basis that any advance would be repaid through levy collection and paid within the current financial year and so that any proposed payment would be brought to a future Cabinet meeting for approval.
- f) authority be delegated to the Section 151 Officer in consultation with the Leader of the Council, the Chief Executive, the Director of Economic Development and the Monitoring Officer to negotiate and complete a BID Operating Agreement on behalf of the Council.
- g) should a yes vote be achieved, the Director of Economic Development be nominated as the Council representative to the board of the BID company.

# 123 CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL DIGITAL STRATEGY

Cabinet considered a report on the establishment of a digital strategy.

The report outlined the need for the whole organisation to understand to deliver digital services. The digital strategy defines the Authority's response to the challenge of engaging digital audiences.

**RESOLVED**: that the Cardiff Council Digital Strategy 2016 – 2021 be approved.

#### 124 MULTI-AGENCY CHILD SEXUAL EXPLOITATION STRATEGY

Cabinet received a report on the establishment of a Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) Strategy.

The strategy sets out how agencies and professionals in Cardiff are working together to mitigate the risks for children and young people arising from the threat of CSE.

The strategy is focused on meeting the challenge presented by the threat of CSE in relation to key considerations, namely, Prevent harm, Prepare children, families, communities and professionals to spot children at risk, Protect victims and Pursue, disrupt and prosecute perpetrators.

**RESOLVED**: that the Cardiff Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy be approved.

#### 125 CORPORATE PARENTING STRATEGY

Cabinet considered a report setting out Cardiff's Corporate Parenting Strategy.

A Corporate Parenting Strategy is a key document which outlines how the Council will discharge its responsibility as a Corporate Parent and prioritise delivery of services for looked after children in the care of the Council.

RESOLVED: that the Corporate Parenting Strategy be endorsed and approved.

# 126 CARDIFF 2020 - AIMING FOR EXCELLENCE

Cabinet received the Cardiff 2020 Aiming for Excellence Strategy.

Building on the positive outcome of the January 2016 Estyn monitoring visit the strategy sets out longer term proposals for the improvement of education and learning in Cardiff and secures the commitment of key stakeholders to a clear set of goals and outcomes.

# **RESOLVED**: that

- 1. the adoption of the Cardiff 2020 Aiming for Excellence strategy be approved.
- 2. responsibility be delegated to the Director of Education and Lifelong Learning for the development and implementation of operational plans to deliver the success measures set out in the strategy.
- 127 RESPONSE TO THE REPORT OF THE COMMUNITY AND ADULT SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT ENTITLED 'INFORMATION, ADVICE AND ASSISTANCE (IAA) SERVICES FOR MENTAL HEALTH SERVICE USERS IN CARDIFF'

Cabinet received the response to the report published by the Community and Adult Services Scrutiny Committee entitled "Information, Advice and Assistance (IAA) Services for Mental Health Service Users in Cardiff" The Committee made 10 recommendations, all of which have been addressed by the Social Services & Wellbeing Act Strategic Regional Implementation Group.

**RESOLVED**: that the response to the recommendations as set out in Appendix A to the report be agreed.

## 128 LLANOVER HALL - EXPRESSIONS OF INTEREST TO SUB LEASE

Cabinet received a report which sets out proposals for an advertisement for expressions of interest to seek an operating partner with the Council to ensure the long term sustainability of Llanover Hall as a community arts venue.

## **RESOLVED**: that

- 1. Llanover Hall be advertised for expressions of interest to seek an operating partner with the Council.
- 2. authority for the acceptance of a preferred bid be delegated to the Director for Communities Housing and Customer Services in consultation with the Cabinet Members for Corporate Services and Performance and Skills, Safety, Engagement & Democracy and the Director for Corporate Resources, and Property and Estates Manager to identify and conclude terms with a preferred operator for Llanover.
- 3. In the event that no successful partner is found a future cabinet report will be brought forward in regard to the future provision of Adult Community Learning from Llanover Hall and the future of the asset.

#### 129 CABINET ADVISORY GROUPS

Cabinet received a report outlining the proposed establishment of Cabinet Policy Advisory Groups in order to support a more inclusive approach to policy development work.

# **RESOLVED**: that

the establishment of Cabinet Policy Advisory Groups be approved, as and when required, to assist with policy development on behalf of the Cabinet. The Terms of Reference of Groups shall be based broadly on the common terms of reference set out in Appendix A to the report.